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Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council

City of Luna Pier

Luna Pier, Michigan 48157

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Luna Pier, Monroe County, Michigan as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2021, and related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud to error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.



Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Luna Pier

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Luna Pier, Monroe County, Michigan as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 20 to the basic financial statements, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, which represents a change in its policy for reporting fiduciary activities. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, and required pension and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) schedules on
pages 3 through 10, 53 through 62, and 63 through 65, respectfully, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City
of Luna Pier, Monroe County, Michigan’s basic financial statements. The other supplemental information, as listed in the
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.

The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other
supplemental information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

%MM+W

December 14, 2021



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

This section of the City of Luna Pier’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial
ed the fiscal year d June 30, 2021. Pi
edi follow this sec This summary sho

of the financial statements and other supplemental informati

program for the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Proprietary Fund.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These statements are
organized so the reader can understand the City of Luna Pier financially as a whole. The Government-Wide Financial
Statements, which include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, provide information about the
activities of the City as a whole and presents both a short-term and a long-term view of those finances. The Fund
Financial Statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental activities, these statements explain how services
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The Fund Financial Statements report the
City’s operations in more detail than the Government-Wide Financial Statements by providing information about the
City’s most significant funds - the General Fund, the Major Street Fund, the Local Street Fund, the Police Millage Fund,
the Garbage and Rubbish Collection Fund, the Downtown Development Authority Fund, the Community Development
Fund, the Flood Control Facilities Fund, the Fire Millage Fund, and the Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund. The
remaining statements, the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position,
present financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as an agent for the benefit of the public. The
following summary illustrates how the various parts of this annual report are arranged:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
(Required Supplemental Information)

Government-Wide Financial Statements Fund Financial Statements

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Budgetary Information for Major Funds
Required Pension Schedules
Required OPEB Schedule
(Required Supplemental Information)

Other Supplemental Information



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (pages 11-13), which appear first in the City’s financial
statements, report information on the City as a whole and its activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities,
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This
basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses, regardless of when cash is received
or paid.

two statem r the ’s net positio c in h net position pro the
atoolto a i ermi whether the ] al r 0 orating. The rel hip
between revenues cates the City’s ing results. , the s goal is to provide ces to
our residents, not t as commercial e do. One m erm ther non-financial fa , such

as the quality of the services provided and the safety of the public to assess the overall health of the City.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report the governmental and business-type activities for the
City, which encompass all of the City’s services, including general government services, public safety, public works,
community and economic development, recreation and culture, and waste water services. Property taxes, federal and state
grants, charges for services, and rentals finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The City’s Fund Financial Statements (pages 14-24) provide detailed information about the most significant or “major”
funds - not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However,
the City establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using
revenues. The City’s three types of funds, governmental, proprietary and fiduciary, use different accounting approaches
as described below:

Governmental funds - Many of the City’s services are reported in governmental funds. Governmental fund
reporting focuses on showing how money flows into and out of funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. They are reported using the modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the operations of the City and the services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation format in the financial
section on pages 16 and 19.

Proprietary fund — A proprietary fund is used to account for business-type activities of the City which consists of the
Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund. This fund accounts for services provided by the City where the City charges
customers for the services it provides. This fund uses accrual accounting; the same method used by private sector
business.

Fiduciary fund — This fund is used to account for the collection and disbursement of property taxes for the benefit of
parties outside of the City. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in the fiduciary funds are
used for their intended purposes. The City’s fiduciary balances and activities are reported in the Statement of
Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. We exclude these activities from the
City’s government-wide financial statements because the Township cannot use these assets to finance its operations.
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Financial Highlights

The following are some of the financial highlights for the 2020-21 fiscal year:

7
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The Waste Water Treatment Plant project was completed
Construction continued on the Lighthouse project

8t year for the Veteran’s Day parade

Purchased a furnace for City Hall

Purchased a new server for City Hall

Purchased another parking box machine

Upgrades were made to the break wall

Updated the City’s website



CITY OF LUNA PIER
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Government—Wide Financial Analysis

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the City as a whole. The City has a bi-annual audit,
so the tables do not provide comparative information. Table 1 provides a summary of the City’s net position as of June
30,2021:

Table 1:
Statement of Net Position
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2021 2021

Current and other assets $1,882,937 $538,154 $2,421,091
Capital assets, net 2,142,709 4,932,818 7,075,527

Total Assets 4,025,646 5,470,972 9,496,618
Deferred outflows related to pension 77,328 51552 128,880
Current and other liabilities 153,529 63,927 217,456
Long-term liabilities 2,801,069 900 7,043,969

Total Liabilities 598 4,306.827 7,261,425
Deferred inflows related to pension 40,099 26,733 66,832
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 1,512,358 1 840,818 3,353,176

Restricted for highways and streets 511,553 0 511,553

Restricted for rubbish collection 17,921 0 17,921

Restricted for flood control 204,218 0 204,218

Restricted for fire protection 52 0 52

Restricted for police protection 8,310 0 8,310

Unrestricted (1,146,135) 651 854 (1,797,989)

Total Net Position $1,108,277 $1,188,964 $2,297,241

As depicted in Table 1, the City’s net position was $2.3 million at June 30, 2021. Of this amount, the unrestricted net
position was a deficit of $1,797,989. The unrestricted net position balance is used for working capital and cash flow
needs as well as to provide for future uncertainties. The operating results of the General Fund and changes in the net
pension and OPEB liabilities will have a significant impact on the change in unrestricted net position from year to year.



CITY OF LUNA PIER
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Government—Wide Financial Analysis - Continued

The results of this year’s operations for the City as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities (Table 2), which
shows the change in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Table 2:

Statement of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2021 2021 2021
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $219,717 $584,183 $803,900
Federal, state, and local grants 257 169 309.066 566,235
476,886 893,249 1,370,135
General revenues
Property taxes 564,176 0 564,176
Special assessments 67,850 0 67,850
State grants 175,455 0 175,455
Other general revenues
and transfers 33.149 4,197
840.630 4,197 844,827
Total Revenues 1,317,516 897,446 2,214,962
Functions/Program Expenses
Legislative 7,870 0 7,870
General government 261,812 0 261,812
Public safety 405,413 0 405,413
Public works 368,612 0 368,612
Community/économic development 51,897 0 51,897
Recreation and cultural 60,099 0 60,099
Interest on long term-term debt 28,959 0 28,959
Waste Water Treatment Plant 0 531931 531931
Total Expenses 1,184,662 531,931 71 593
Change in Net Position 132,854 365,515 498,369
Net Position - Beginning of year 975.423 823 449 1,798,872
Net Position - End of year $1,108.277 $1,188,964 $2,297.,241

As indicated in Table 2, the cost of all governmental activities this year was $1.2 million. Of this amount, $0.5 million
was subsidized with revenue generated from charges for services and grants with the remaining costs financed with
general revenues.



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Government—Wide Financial Analysis — Concluded

The City experienced an increase in net position of $498,369. The increase in net position differs from the change in fund
balance. A reconciliation of the change in fund balances for the governmental funds to the change in net position appears
on page 19.

Fund Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, the City uses funds to help control and manage money for particular purposes. Looking at funds helps
the reader consider whether the City of Luna Pier is being held accountable for the resources taxpayers and others provide

to it and may give more insight into the City’s overall financial health.

As the City completed this year, the funds accounting for the governmental activities reported a combined fund balance of
$1,861,605, which is an increase of $49,401 from last year. The changes by fund types are as follows:

Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
Fund Funds Funds

Fund balances-
Beginning of year $1,109,518 $488,224 $214.462
Increase (decrease) (42,171) 101 (10,192)
Fund balances-
End of year $1,067,347 $589,988 $204,270

The City’s General Fund balance decrease is due to many factors. The tables that follow assist in illustrating the financial

activities of the General Fund.

June 30, 2021

Revenues

Property taxes $453,735
Licenses and permits 153,810
Federal grants 477231
State grants 173,502
Local grants 7,936
Charges for services 4,731
Fines and forfeits 3,606
Interest income 2,901
Rentals 58,546
Other revenue 26,845

Total Revenues $932,843



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Fund Financial Analysis — Concluded

June 30, 2021

Expenditures
Legislative $7,870
General government 180,501
Public safety 133,229
Public works 127,306
Community and economic development 46,877
Recreation and cultural 48,285
Debt service 71,178
Other 288,972
Operating transfers out 70,796

$975,014

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Uniform Budget Act of the State of Michigan requires the City Council to adopt the original budget for the upcoming
fiscal year prior to July 1, the start of the fiscal year. Over the course of the year, the City revises its budget as it attempts
to deal with the unexpected changes in revenues and expenditures. State law requires that the budget be amended to
ensure that expenditures do not exceed appropriations. A schedule illustrating the City’s original and final budget
amounts compared with amounts actually paid and received is provided in the required supplemental information of these
financial statements. Revisions to the General Fund original budget were as follows:

Revenues — The original budget of $800,202 and the amended budget was $806,437 during the 2020-21 fiscal year. The
budgeted was amended in order to account for a federal grant. The City relies heavily on property taxes and state shared
revenue to fund General Fund expenditures. Property taxes and state shared revenue make up 65% of the General Fund
revenues.

Expenditures - The original budgeted total of $999,498 and the amended budget was $1,197,160 during the 2020-21 fiscal
year. The budget was amended in order to account for increases in elections, City hall and grounds, the police
department, the fire department, drains, streetlights, and debt service.



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2021, the City had $14.2 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, roads, land
improvements, building and building improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles, a waste water treatment plant,
and sewer lines. This year’s additions of $815,991 included a furnace, a server, shooting range electrical, police car,
docks, radar units, turnout gear, break wall improvements, lighthouse, library air conditioner, Ford F-350, treatment plant
equipment and treatment plant construction. Depreciation for governmental activities totaled $159,323, and depreciation
for business-type activities totaled $200,609. Detailed information regarding capital assets is included in Note 7 to the
financial statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2021, the City had $291,748 in special assessment drainage district bonds payable, $435,000 in 2016 General
Obligation Judgment Bonds, $318,967 in a Michigan State Infrastructure Bank Loan, and $7,861 in a note payable for a
records management system. The City had accrued a liability for unused vacation and personal days of $39,204 at June
30, 2021. The City had $2,577,000 of 2012A Waste Water Treatment System Revenue Bonds, $87,000 of 2012B Waste
Water Treatment System Revenue Bonds, and $428,000 in 2019 Waste Water Treatment System Revenue Bonds.
Detailed information regarding the City’s debt is included in Note 8 to the financial statements.

Postretirement Healthcare Benefits

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City completed an actuarial valuation of the retiree healthcare benefits
offered to eligible employees. As indicated in Note 16 to the financial statements, the actuarial accrued liability is
$74,557. This benefit is not currently funded and is recognized on a “pay-as-you-go” basis.

Development of the 2021-22 Fiscal Year Budget

Our elected officials considered many factors when setting the City’s 2021-22 fiscal year budget. The City has taken
several measures to help control the rising cost of the governmental services and the ongoing decline of property taxes and
state revenue sharing. For 2021-22, the City anticipates General Fund revenues of $796,055 and expenditures of
$1,000,494, which results in a decrease of $204,439 to the carryover fund balance.

Contacting the City of Luna Pier
This financial report is designed to provide the City’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate their accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions

about this report or need additional information, contact the City Clerk, City of Luna Pier, 4357 Buckeye Street, Luna
Pier, MI 48157.

10



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Accounts/loans receivable

Due from other governmental units
Internal balances

Prepaid expenses

Resticted cash

Capital assets, net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pension

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows related to pension

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:

Restricted for highways and streets

Restricted for rubbish collection

Restricted for flood control

Restricted for fire protection

Restricted for police protection
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Statement of Net Position
June 30. 2021

Governmental
Activities

$1,051,636
533,446
47,336
59,315
178,126
13,078

0
2,142,709

4,025,646

77,328

21,332
19,636
112,561

980,219
1,776,116
44,734

2,954,598

40,099

1,512,358

511,553
17,921
204,218
52
8,310
(1,146,135)

$1,108,277

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities

$284,315
0
218,465
0
(178,126)
6,737
206,763
4,932,818

5,470,972

51,552

927

0

63,000
3,029,000
1,184,077
29,823

4,306,827

26,733

1,840,818

o O © O

0
651,854)

$1,188,964

Total

$1,335,951
533,446
265,801
59,315

0

19,815
206,763
7,075,527

9,496,618

128,880

22,259
19,636
175,561

4,009,219
2,960,193
74,557

7,261,425

66,832

3,353,176

511,553

17,921

204,218

52

8,310
(1,797,989)

$2,297,241



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30. 2021

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
for Services  Contributions  Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary government -
Governmental activities:

Legislative $7,870 $0 $0 $0
General government 261,812 30,045 0 0
Public safety 405,413 157,926 11,863 0
Public works 368,612 31,496 237,370 0
Community and economic development 51,897 250 0 0
Recreation and cultural 60,099 0 7,936 0
Interest on long-term debt 28,959 0 0 0

Total Governmental Activities 1,184,662 219,717 257,169 0

Business-type activities:

Waste water treatment plant 531,931 584 183 0 309,066
Total business type activities 531,931 584,183 0 309,066
Total primary government $1,716.593 $257.169 $309,066

General Revenues:
Property taxes
Special assessments
State grants
Interest and investment earnings
Gain on sale of property
Other

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of year

Net Position - End of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

12



Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total
($7,870) $0 ($7,870)
(231,767) 0 (231,767)
(235,624) 0 (235,624)
(99,746) 0 (99,746)
(51,647) 0 (51,647)
(52,163) 0 (52,163)
(28,959) 0 (28,959)
(707,776) 0 (707,776)
0 361,318 361,318
0 361,318 361,318
(707,776) 361,318 (346,458)
564,176 0 564,176
67,850 0 67,850
175,455 0 175,455
5,078 0 5,078
9,320 0 9,320
18,751 4,197 22,948
840,630 4,197 844,827
132,854 365,515 498,369
975,423 823,449 1,798,872
$1,108,277 $1,188,964 $2,297,241

13



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Accounts/loans/taxes receivable
Due from other governmental units
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenditures
Restricted for:
Streets and highways
Garbage and rubbish collection
Flood contro}
Fire protection
Police department
Assigned to:
Lighthouse project
Community/economic development
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2021

General
Fund

$323,428
361,098
4,676
28,399
361,768
13,078

$1,092,447

$16,492
8,608

25,100

13,078

OO O O O

79,490
0
974,779

1,067,347
$1,092,447

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

14

Major Street

Fund

$342,493

$362,782

$0
87,951

87,951

274,831
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

274,831
$362,782

Special Revenue Funds

Garbage

Police and Rubbish

Local Street Millage Collection

Fund Fund Fund

$321,786 $2,799 $22,665
0 0 0

0 0 0

0,627 0 0

0 5,607 0

0 0 0
$332,413 $8,406 $22,665
$0 $96 $4,744
95,691 0 0
95,691 96 4,744

0 0 0

236 722 0 0
0 0 7921

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 8,310 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0
236,722 8,310 17,921
$332,413 $8,406 $22,665



Downtown
Development
Authority Fund

$ ,042

OO O OO

$1,042

O O O OO

0
1,042
0

1,042
$1,042

Community

Development
Fund

$8,502
0
42,660
0
0
0

$51,162

OO O OO

0
51,162
0

51,162
$51,162

Flood Control

Facilities Fire Millage
Fund Fund
$28,869 $52
172,348 0

0 0

0 0

3,001 0

0 0
$204,218 $52
$0 $0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
204,218 0
0 52

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
204,218 52
$204,218 $52
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Total

Governmental
Funds

$1,051,636
533,446
47336
59,315
370,376
13,078

$2,075,187

$21,332
192,250

213,582

13,078

511,553
17,921
204,218
52
8,310

79,490
52,204
974,779

1,861,605
$2,075,187



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $1,861,605

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and are not reported in the funds

Cost of the capital assets $5,763,016
Accumulated depreciation (3,620,307)
2,142,709
Deferred outflows of resources resulting from net pension liability 77,328
Deferred inflows of resources resulting from net pension liability (40,099)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
are not reported in the funds:
Loan payable (1,053,576)
Net pension liability (1,776,116)
Net OPEB liability (44,734)
Compensated absences (39,204)
Accrued interest (19,636)
(2,933,266)
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $1,108.277

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues
Property taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Federal grants
State grants
Local grants
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest income
Rentals
Other revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Legislative
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and cultural
Debt service
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning of year

Fund Balances - End of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

General
Fund

$453,735
0
153,810
47,231
173,502
7,936
4,731
3,606
2,901
58,546
26,845

932,843

7,870
180,501
133,229
127,306

46,877
48,285
71,178
288.972

904,218

28,625

0
(70,796)

(70,796)

(42,171)
1,109,518
$1,067.347
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Fund

$0
0
0
0
123,985
0
0
0
56
0
0

124,141

0
60,167
214,664
$274,831

Special Revenue Funds

Major Street Local Street

Fund

0
30,866
205,856
$236,722

Police
Fund

$88,092
0

0
10,696
1,914

0

OO O O O

100,702

165,608

[ B e B o B o B e ]

165,608

(64,906)

70,796
0

70,796
5,890
2,420

$8.310

Garbage
and Rubbish
Collection
Fund

$0
67,850

OO OO OO O OO

67,850

58,580

9,270

0

9,270
8,651
$17,921



Downtown
Development
Authority Fund

&3
W
E-N
—

OO O OO OO OO

250
591

O OO0 OO OO OO0

591

591
451
$1,042

Projects Funds

Community Flood Control

Development
Fund

&+
(=}

©C OO OO OO OO OO

OO O O

5,020
0
0
0

5,020

(5,020)

0
(5,020)
56,182

$51,162

Facilities Fire Millage
Fund Fund
$22,008 $0

0 0

0 0

0 0

,206 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

,890 0

0 0

0 0
25,104 0
0 0

0 0

0 0
35,296 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
35,296 0
(10,192) 0
0 0

0 0

0 0
(10,192) 0
214.410 52
$204,218 $52

Total
Governmental
Funds

$564,176
67,850
153,810
57,927
366,761
7,936
4,731
3,606
5,078
58,546
27,095

1,317,516

7,870
180,501
298,837
286,373

51,897
48,285
105,380
288,972

1,268,115

49,401

70,796
(70,796)

0

49,401
1,812,204
$1,861,605

18



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $49,401

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures;

in the statement of activities, these costs are allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation:
Depreciation expense ($159,323)
Capital outlay 85,424

(73,899)

Accrued interest is recorded in the statement of activities when incurred;
it is not reported in governmental funds until paid. 1,713

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. 111,716

The statement of net position reports the net pension liabilty and deferred
outflows of resouces related to the net pension liability and pension
expense. However, the amount recorded on the governmental fund
equals actual pension contributions.
Net change in pension liability. (24,748)
Net change in deferred outflows of resouces related to the net pension
liability. 10,152
Net change in deferred inflows of resouces related to the net pension
liability. (41,984)

Decrease in net retiree healthcare obligation reported in the statement of
activities does not require the use of current resources, and therefore is
not reported in the fund statements until it comes due for payment. 108,381

Increases in the liability for compensated absences are reported as
expenditures in the statement of activities; but not in the

governmental funds. (7,878)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $132,854

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Assets
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Restricted Assets
Cash

Capital Assets
Less: Allowance for depreciation
Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pension

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Bonds payable - current portion
Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities:
Bonds payable
Non-current portion
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pension

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Proprietary Fund
Statement ition
June

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund
Waste Water
Treatment
Plant Fund

284,315
218,465
10,916
6,737
520,433

206,763
8,463,705
(3,530,887)
4,932,818

5,660,014

51,552

927
189,042
63,000
252,969

3,029,000
1,184,077

29,823
4,242,900

4,495,869
26,733
1,840,818

(651,854)

1,188,964



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Business-type

Activities
Enterprise Fund
Waste Water
Treatment
Plant Fund
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $584,183
Other revenue 4,197
Total Operating Revenues 588,380
Operating Expenses
Sewer processing and maintenance 421,684
Administration 23,567
Total Operating Expenses 445,251
Net Operating Income (Loss) 143,129
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Federal grant proceeds 309,066
Interest (86,680)
Total Non-Operating Expenses 222,386
Change in Net Position 365,515
Net Position - Beginning of year, restated 823,449
Net Position - End of year $1,188.964

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets
Grant proceeds
Principal payments on bonds payable
Int paid
cash provided (used) for capital and related financing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year
Balance Sheet Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash
Restricted Cash

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
from operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Payables
Due to other funds
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities
Enterprise Fund
Waste Water
Treatment
Plant Fund

$558,988

(181,146)

(127,293)
250,549

(301,925)
296,690
(60,000)

98,634
392,444

$491,078

$284,315
206,763

$491,078

$143,129

200,609

(29,392)
(1,986)
2,147
60
(17,752)
37,719
(83,985)

$250,549



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Custodial Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2021

Tax
Collection
Assets
Cash $1,692
Liabilities
$1,692

Due to other taxing units

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Custodial Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2021

Additions
Property taxes collected for other governments

Total Additions

Deductions
Property taxes distributed to other governments

Total Deductions
Net increase in net position
Net position committed for other governments:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Tax
Collection

$1,191,685

1,191,685

1,191,685

1,191,685

0

$0




Note 1

Note 2

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Fnded .June 30.

The City operates under a locally elected seven member Council form of government and provides the
following services: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, recreation and culture,
public improvements, planning and zoning, waste water treatment, and general administrative services.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that
are included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the
City consists of all funds, departments, Councils, and agencies that are not legally separate from the City.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City in that the City
approves their budget, the issuance of their debt, or the levying of taxes. The City has the following
blended component unit:

Downtown Development Authority

This entity was established to promote economic growth and revitalization of the City’s
Downtown District. The DDA board is appointed by the City Council and the annual budget and
any modifications require the approval of the City Council. The DDA has a June 30 fiscal year
end.

The following entities are not included herein as they operate as autonomous units

Luna Pier Housing Commission

This entity is responsible for the public housing project within the City. The Commission is
responsible to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for its fiscal
management and HUD is responsible for the debt of the project which is not guaranteed by the

City.

South County Water System

This is a joint venture between the City, LaSalle Township, Erie Township, Bedford Township,
and the County of Monroe to provide water to these municipalities located within the County of
Montroe.

The financial statements of the City of Luna Pier have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Council (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The following are the more significant of the City’s
accounting policies.
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Note 2

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended . 3N 2021

(Continued)

Basis of Presentation

A.

ents

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. As a
general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Amounts reported as program revenue include
(1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions.
General revenue includes taxes, intergovernmental payments, sales of property, and other items not
properly included among program revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and custodial
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
governmental funds and the individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

- The government-wide financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
fund statements. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

- Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it
is collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Governmental fund expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

On the governmental funds statements, property taxes, intergovernmental grants, and interest
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to
be available only when cash is received by the City.

Fiduciary fund statements also are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the cash basis of accounting.
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Note 2

B.

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended Tune 30. 2021

(Continued)

(Continued)
(Continued)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. The General Fund accounts for all
financial resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Major Street Fund accounts for gas and weight tax monies from the State of Michigan and
expenditures for construction and maintenance of all major streets.

The Local Street Fund accounts for gas and weight tax monies from the State of Michigan and
expenditures for construction and maintenance of all local streets.

The Police Millage Fund accounts for proceeds from a tax millage for police protection.

The Garbage and Rubbish Collection Fund accounts for special assessment revenues and the
payment of refuse charges.

The Downtown Development Authority Fund accounts for monies collected to be used for
development within the downtown development authority district.

The Community Development Fund accounts for all monies received by the City from the
block grant programs.

The Flood Control Facilities Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures used for constructing
and maintaining flood control facilities.

The Fire Millage Fund accounts for proceeds from a tax millage for a pumper fire truck and fire
protection equipment.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund accounts for the operation of the waste water treatment
plant financed through user charges and transfers.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The City does not have any nonmajor governmental funds.
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Note 2

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Fnded Tume 300 2071

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C.

(Continued)

- Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are
stated at fair value.

- Property taxes are assessed as of December 31 and the related property
taxes become a lien on July 1 and December 1 of the following year. Summer taxes are considered
delinquent July 31 and winter taxes are considered delinquent February 14 of the following year.

- Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30,
2021 are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid
amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in
which services are consumed.

- Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g. sewer lines, road, etc.) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns of the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as
assets with an individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost when actual cost
information is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized.

All reported capital assets, other than land, are depreciated. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives
Roads 20 years
Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and buildings improvements 20-60 years
Machinery and equipment 3-30 years
Vehicles 5-8 years
Sewer lines 60 years

Interfund Balances - On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-
term interfund loans are classified as “due to/from other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in
the governmental activities column of the statement of net position. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

- In the government-wide financial statements
and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debts, notes, and other obligations are reported
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
types statement of net position.
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Note 2

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended .une 30. 2021

(Continued)
(Continued)
(Continued)
(Concluded)
In general, payables and accrued liabilities that once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in
full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and
judgments that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Payments of
long-term loans that are paid from governmental funds are recognized as an expenditure on the
governmental fund financial statements when due.

- City employees are granted vacation and personal days under formulas
and conditions in the employee’s contract. The vacation and personal pay is accrued in the
government-wide financial statements. In the fund financial statements, these accounts are reported
when paid.

— Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources
that have been received but not yet earned.

Deferred of Resources In addition to assets, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City has deferred outflows of resources related to pension, as
described in Note 12, and OPEB, as described in Note 16.

- In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The City has deferred inflows of resources related to pension, as described in Note 12,
and OPEB, as described in Note 16.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan and additions
to/deductions from MERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by MERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

The City offers retiree healthcare benefits to retirees. The City records a net OPEB liability for the
difference between the OPEB liability calculated by the actuary and the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net
position. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position the City’s OPEB plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB plan. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Note 2

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended Time 30 2071

(Continued)
(Continued)
(Concluded)

- Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows and
liabilities plus deferred inflows. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling
legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws, or regulations of
other governments.

- Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the
seller funds and as expenditures in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to
another without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund
transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds. Repayments from
funds responsible for particular expenditures to the funds that initially paid for them are not
presented on the financial statements.

- The fund
balance is categorized as non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned based on
the relative strength of the spending constraints. The City has the authority to place funds under the
committed and assigned categories. Restricted resources should be used first, followed by
committed funds, assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts. The City desired to maintain, in
stable economic times, a fund balance of at least 15% of the City’s General Fund annual operating
expenditures.

- The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported on the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

- Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both
unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are
within the control of the City and that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.
Neither type of transaction occurred during fiscal year 2021.

- The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the State of Michigan
Budget Act and entails the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable.
The General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds are legally required to be budgeted and
appropriated. The legal level of budgetary control has been established by the City Council at the
function level. Any budgetary modifications may only be made by the City Council.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgets for the individual funds as reflected
in the financial statements.

1. Prior to June 30, the fiscal officer submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for
the fiscal year commencing on July 1.

2. A public hearing is conducted during June to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution.
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Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements

Yeor Fnded 3N 20217
(Concluded)
(Concluded)
F. (Concluded)

4. During the year the budget is monitored, and amendments to the budget deemed necessary are
approved by the City Council.

5. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

6. Lapsing of Appropriations - At the close of each year all unspent appropriations revert to the
respective funds from which they were appropriated and become subject to future appropriations.

The City shall not incur expenditures in excess of the amount appropriated. Annual budgets are adopted
on a basis that is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and State Law for the General
and Special Revenue Funds. Even though not required by State Law, the City adopts budgets for the
Capital Projects Funds.

In the required supplemental information, the City’s actual expenditures and budgeted expenditures for
the budgetary funds have been shown on a functional basis, which is the adopted legal level of control.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities;
commercial paper within the three highest rate classifications by at least two rating services; bankers'
acceptances of U.S. banks, U.S. or agency repurchase agreements; savings accounts and certificates of
deposit with banks and savings and loan associations, or credit unions which are insured with the
applicable federal agency. Public funds of the City may not be deposited in financial institutions located
in states other than Michigan.

Public Act 367 of 1982 (known as the Surplus Funds Investment Pool Act) enables municipalities to
invest surplus operating funds in investment pools managed by qualified financial institutions. At June
30, 2021, the City of Luna Pier had invested in such a fund with a local bank. The City is able to
retrieve these funds without restriction and, accordingly, this amount is considered to be available cash.

The local bank invests these funds in a variety of instruments including bonds and direct obligations of
the United States, certificates of deposit, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications
by not less than two standard rating services, United States government or federal agency obligation
repurchase agreements and bankers acceptances of the United States banks.

The City believes that, due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, and
since State of Michigan legislation does not require that all deposits be collateralized, it is impractical to
insure all bank deposits. As a result, the City evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits
City funds and assesses the level of risk at each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable
estimated risk level are used as depositories.

The Council has adopted an investment policy authorizing certain types of investments and authorized
two depositories: First Merchants Bank and Monroe Community Credit Union.
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Note 4

Note 5

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Ended .June 30.

— (Concluded)
Interest rate risk. The City’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk. The City will minimize credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security
issuer or backer, by limiting investments to the types of securities listed in the City’s investment policy.

Concentration of credit risk. The City does not place any limits on the amount the City may deposit or
invest in any one issuer.

Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may not be returned to the City. The City has $2,098,171 invested in certificates of
deposit, checking accounts, and money markets. The City’s deposits are insured by the FDIC or NCUSIF
in the amount of $710,963. Uninsured deposits are $1,387,208. The City Council approves and
designates a list of authorized depository institutions. The City’s investment policy does not address
deposit risk.

Foreign currency risk. The City is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of risk.

Such balances at June 30, 2021 were:

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable
General Fund:
Major Street Fund $80,102 $0
Local Street Fund 92,624 0
Police Millage Fund 0 5,607
Flood Control Facility Fund 0 3,001
Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund 189,042 0
Major Street Fund:
General Fund 0 80,102
Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund 0 7,849
Local Street Fund:
General Fund 0 92,624
Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund 0 3,067
Police Millage Fund:
General Fund 5,607 0
Flood Control Facility Fund:
General Fund 3,001 0
Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund:
Major Street Fund 7,849 0
Local Street Fund 3,067 0
General Fund 0 189,042
$381,292 $381.292

Interfund balances reflect temporary loans and reimbursements due in the normal course of interfund
activity.
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Note 6
Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:
Transfer Out
General
Fund
Transfer In:
Police Millage Fund $70.796
The transfer from the General Fund to the Police Millage Fund was for normal operations of the police
department.
Note 7

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Additions Deletions June 2021
Governmental Activities
Assets not being depreciated:
Land $3,100 $0 $0 $3,100
Construction in progress 126,428 13.158 0 139.586
129,528 13,158 0 142,686
Capital assets being depreciated:
Roads 835,786 0 0 835,786
Land improvements 1,117,863 30,711 0 1,148,574
Buildings and building improvements 1,624,184 16,790 0 1,640,974
Machinery and equipment 1,178,801 20,765 0 1,199,566
Vehicles 791,430 4,000 0 795,430
5,548,064 72,266 0 5 0
Total capital assets 5,677,592 85,424 0 5,763,016
Less accumulated depreciation:
Roads (269,636) (41,789) 0 (311,425)
Land improvements (682,179) (43,089) 0 (725,268)
Buildings and building improvements (682,780) (37,647) 0 (720,427)
Machinery and equipment (1,069,640) (30,002) 0 (1,099,642)
Vehicles (756,749) 6.796) 0 (763,545)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,460,984) (159,323) 0
Net capital assets $2,216,608 ( $0 $2,142,709
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Notes to Financial Statements
Yorv Ended . Tune 30 2021

(Concluded)

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government
Public safety

Public works
Recreation and cultural

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities (Waste Water
Treatment Plant Fund)
Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated:
Treatment plant
Sewer lines
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Treatment plant
Sewer lines
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

$10,902
22,617
97,941
27.863

$159,323

$0
428,642

Balance
Additions Deletions
$6,500 $0
428.642 0
435,142 0

5,947,059 495,737

1,051,208 0
705,198 178,450
23173 56,380
7,726,638 730,567
8,161,780 730,567

(2,017,118)  (156,786)
(592,180) (17,520)
(697,806) (20.262)

174) (6,041)

(200,609)

428,642

o O O O O

428,642

o O O O O

$4.831,502 $529,958 $428.642
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Balance
June 30, 2021

$6,500
0
6,500

6,442,796
1,051,208
883,648
79,553

8,457,205
8,463,705

(2,173,904)
(609,700)
(718,068)

- (29215)

(
$4,932,818



Note 8

Changes in principal during the 2020-21 fiscal year are summarized as follows

Governmental Activities:

Bonds and contracts payable:
Direct borrowings and
direct placements:

2011 Lakeside Drain
Assessment

2013 General Obligation
Judgment Bonds (Limited
Tax)

Michigan State Infrastructure
Bank Loan

Monroe County Records
Management System Loan

Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Payable

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities

Bonds and contracts payable:
Direct borrowings and
direct placements:

Waste Water Treatment
System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012A

Waste Water Treatment
System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012B

Waste Water Treatment
System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2019

Total business-type activities

Total long-term debt

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
3N 2021

Year Ended

Balance
7/1/2020

$350,863

485,000

316,456

12,973

31326

1,196,618

2,629,000

89,000

434,000

3,152,000

$4,348,618
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Additions

$0

7 878

7878

Reductions

$31,896

50,000

24,708

5,112

0

111,716

52,000

2,000

6,000

60,000

Balance
6/30/2021

$318,967

435,000

291,748

7,861

39204

1,092,780

2,577,000

87,000

428,000

3,092,000

$4,184,780

Due Within
One Year

$31,897

50,000

25,449

5,215

0

112 561

54,000

2,000

63 000

$175,561



Note 8

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Ended .June 30. 1

(Continued)
Compensated absences payable represents vested benefits for unused vacation and personal days under
formulas and conditions specified in the employee’s contract.

The following is a summary of the annual principal and interest requirements for the City debt:

— The County of Monroe issued $1,850,000 in 2011 Drainage District
Bonds (General Obligation Limited Tax) on September 14, 2011 at an interest rate of 4.92%. The City of
Luna Pier is obligated to pay $842,644 to the County of Monroe in order to cover the City’s principle and
interest requirements to retire this bond issue. Principal and interest payments are due on February 14.

Fiscal Year Princival Interest Totals
2022 $31,897 $15,693 $47,590
2023 31,897 14,124 46,021
2024 31,897 12,554 44,451
2025 31,897 11,015 42912
2026 31,897 9416 41313
2027 31,897 7,847 39,744
2028 31,897 6,277 38,174
2029 31,896 4,721 36,617
2030 31,896 3,139 35,035
2031 31,896 1,569 33,465

$318,967 $86,355 $405,322

— The City of Luna Pier issued $720,000 in 2013 Judgment Bonds (General
Obligation Limited Tax) on June 18, 2013, at an interest rate ranging from 0.95% to 4.2%. Principal
payments are due on August 1 and interest payments are due on February 1 and August 1.  The City
pledges its full limited tax full faith and credit for the prompt payment of the bonds.

Fiscal Year Interest Totals
2022 $50,000 $14,708 $64,708
2023 50,000 13,433 63,433
2024 50,000 12,045 62,045
2025 55,000 10,329 65,329
2026 55,000 8,253 63,253
2027 55,000 6,080 61,080
2028 60,000 3,750 63,750
2029 60,000 1,260 61,260

$435,000 $69,858 $504,858
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(Continued)
— Loan payable in the amount of $408,298. The interest rate is
3% with repayment in fifteen years. In the event that any payment remains unpaid for 30 days after it is
due, all sums unpaid become due and payable at one at the option of MDOT. If the City fails to make any
of its required payments when they are due, the State Treasurer is authorized and directed to withhold
Michigan Transportation Fund disbursements until the balance is paid in full.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2022 $25,449 $8,753 $34,202
2023 26,213 7,989 34,202
2024 26,999 7,203 34,202
2025 27,809 6,393 34,202
2026 28,643 5,559 34,202
2027 29,503 4,699 34,202
2028 30,388 3,813 34,201
2029 31,300 2,901 34,201
2030 32,238 1,963 34,201
2031 33.206 995 34,201

$291,748 $50,268 $342,016

— The County of Monroe loaned the City $15,491
on January 1, 2020, at an interest rate of 1.0%, for a records management system for the police department.
The loan requires semi-annual payments of $2,672.95, which will be paid in full on July 1, 2022.

Fiscal Year Interest Totals
2022 $131 $5,346
2023 27 2,673

$7.861 $158 $8,019
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Yerr Ended .Tune 30. 2021

(Continued)

— The United States Department of Agriculture
issued $3,000,000 in Series 2012A Waste Water Treatment System Revenue Bonds on July 3, 2012, at an
interest rate of 2.75%, for improvements to the waste water treatment plant. Principal payments are due on
June land interest payments are due on December 1 and June 1.  The City has pledged substantially all
revenue of the Waste Water Treatment Plante Fund, net of operating expenses, to repay the obligations.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2022 $54,000 $70,868 $124,868
2023 55,000 69,382 124,382
2024 57,000 67,870 124,870
2025 58,000 66,302 124,302
2026 60,000 64,708 124,708
2027 62,000 63,058 125,058
2028 63,000 61352 124,352
2029 65,000 59,620 124,620
2030 67,000 57,832 124,832
2031 69,000 55,990 124,990
2032 71,000 54,092 125,092
2033 72,000 52,140 124,140
2034 74,000 50,160 124,160
2035 76,000 48,126 124,126
2036 79,000 46,036 125,036
2037 81,000 43,862 124,862
2038 83,000 41,636 124,636
2039 85,000 39,352 124,352
2040 88,000 37,014 125,014
2041 90,000 34,596 124,596
2042 92,000 32,120 124,120
2043 95,000 29,590 124,590
2044 98,000 26,978 124,978
2045 100,000 24282 124,282
2046 103,000 21,532 124,532
2047 106,000 18,700 124,700
2048 109,000 15,784 124,784
2049 112,000 12,788 124,788
2050 115,000 9,708 124,708
2051 118,000 6,544 124,544
2052 120,000 3,300 123,300

$2,577.000 $1,285,322 $3
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(Continued)

— The United States Department of Agriculture
issued $103,000 in Series 2012B Waste Water Treatment System Revenue Bonds on July 3, 2012, at an
interest rate of 2.75%, for improvements to the waste water treatment plant. Principal payments are due on
June 1 and interest payments are due on December 1 and June 1. The City has pledged substantially all
revenue of the Waste Water Treatment Plante Fund, net of operating expenses, to repay the obligations.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2022 $2,000 $2,392 $4,392
2023 2,000 2,338 4,338
2024 2,000 2,282 4282
2025 2,000 2,228 4,228
2026 2,000 2,172 4,172
2027 2,000 2,118 4,118
2028 2,000 2,062 4,062
2029 2,000 2,008 4,008
2030 2,000 1,952 3,952
2031 2,000 1,898 3,898
2032 2,000 1,842 3,842
2033 2,000 1,788 3,788
2034 3,000 1,732 4,732
2035 3,000 1,650 4,650
2036 3,000 1,568 4,568
2037 3,000 1,486 4,486
2038 3,000 1,402 4,402
2039 3,000 1,320 4,320
2040 3,000 1,238 4238
2041 3,000 1,156 4,156
2042 3,000 1,072 4,072
2043 3,000 990 3,990
2044 3,000 908 3,908
2045 3,000 826 3,826
2046 4,000 742 4,742
2047 4,000 632 4,632
2048 4,000 522 4,522
2049 4,000 412 4,412
2050 4,000 302 4,302
2051 4,000 192 4,192
2052 3,000 82 3,082

$87.000 $43,312 $130,312
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(Continued)

— The United States Department of Agriculture
issued $440,000 in Series 2019C Waste Water Treatment System Revenue Bonds on August 19, 2020, at an
interest rate of 2.75%, for improvements to the waste water treatment plant. Principal payments are due on
June 1 and interest payments are due on December 1 and June 1. The City has pledged substantially all
revenue of the Waste Water Treatment Plante Fund, net of operating expenses, to repay the obligations.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2022 $7,000 $11,770 $18,770
2023 7,000 11,578 18,578
2024 7,000 11,386 18,386
2025 7,000 11,192 18,192
2026 7,000 11,000 18,000
2027 7,000 10,808 17,808
2028 8,000 10,616 18,616
2029 8,000 10,396 18,396
2030 8,000 10,176 18,176
2031 8,000 9,956 17,956
2032 9,000 9,736 18,736
2033 9,000 9,488 18,488
2034 9,000 9,240 18,240
2035 9,000 8,992 17,992
2036 10,000 8,746 18,746
2037 10,000 8.470 18,470
2038 10,000 8,196 18,196
2039 10,000 7,920 17,920
2040 11,000 7,646 18,646
2041 11,000 7,342 18,342
2042 11,000 7,040 18,040
2043 12,000 6,738 18,738
2044 12,000 6,408 18,408
2045 12,000 6,078 18,078
2046 13,000 5,748 18,748
2047 13,000 5,390 18,390
2048 13,000 5,032 18,032
2049 14,000 4,676 18,676
2050 14,000 4,290 18,290
2051 14,000 3,906 17,906
2052 15,000 3,520 18,520
2053 15,000 3,108 18,108
2054 16,000 2,696 18,696
2055 16,000 2,256 18,256
2056 16,000 1,816 17,816
2057 16,000 1,376 17,376
2058 17,000 936 17,936
2059 17.000 468 17,468

$266,136 136

40



Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended 30. 2021

(Concluded)
The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2021,
excluding compensated absences, are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2022 $112,561 $39,285 $151,846
2023 110,756 35,573 146,329
2024 108,896 31,802 140,698
2025 114,706 27,737 142,443
2026 115,540 23,228 138,768
2027-2031 491,117 49,014 540,131

$1,053,576 $206,639 $1,260,215

Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Totals
2022 63,000 85,030 148,030
2023 64,000 83,298 147,298
2024 66,000 81,538 147,538
2025 67,000 79,722 146,722
2026 69,000 77,380 146,880
2027-2031 375,000 359,842 734,842
2032-2036 431,000 305,336 736,336
2037-2041 494,000 242,636 736,636
2042-2046 564,000 171,052 735,052
2047-2051 648,000 88,878 736,878
2052-2056 201,000 16,778 217,778
2057-2058 50,000 2,780 52,780

$3,092,000 $1 770 770

The City tracks building permit fees and their related costs in the General Fund. Fees for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2021, of $37,787, did not exceed the related costs and administrative overhead.

The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for the County of Monroe, State of
Michigan, Monroe County Community College, Monroe County Intermediate School District, Mason
Consolidated School District, and delinquent water bills for the South County Water System. Summer
property taxes are billed on July 1 each year and collected by the City from July 1to July 31. Winter
property taxes are billed on December | each year and collected from December 1 to February 14.
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(Concluded)
The taxable valuation for both real and personal property as of December 31, 2020, amounted to
$43,889,728 which was based on a percentage of the fair market value of the assessed property. The 2020
tax roll consisted of the following:

General Flood
Control Police Total
Mills 9.8245 0.4997 2.0000 12.3242
Levy $431,190 $21,927 $87,776 $540,893

Ordinance No. 67, as amended by Ordinance No. 90, Ordinance No. 145, Ordinance No. 175, Ordinance
No. 197, Resolution No. 830, and Resolution No. 852 established a charge to customers for use of the City
of Luna Pier Waste Water Treatment System. The latest ordinance changed the customer charge from a
flat-fee per residential unit to fees based on a fixed rate charge (depending on the size of the water meter)
and volume charge (depending on the amount of water usage). The new rates per Resolution No. 941 vary
from a fixed rate monthly charge of $28.08 for a 5/8 inch meter to $702.08 for a 4 inch meter. The volume
charge was established at $10.17 per 1,000 gallons of water usage. These fees are in addition to fees
required for connections and permits and other fees required by other ordinances.

The City of Luna Pier’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City participates in the Municipal Employees Retirement
System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension
plan established by the Michigan Legislature under Public Act 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine
member Retirement Board. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained accessing the MERS
website at www.mersofmich.com.

Benefit Multiplier:

Bridged Benefit Date:

Normal Retirement Age:
Vesting:

Early Retirement (unreduced):
Early Retirement (Reduced):
Final Average Compensation:
COLA for Future Retirees:
COLA for Current Retirees:
Employee Contributions:

DC Plan for New Hires

Act 88:

01 - General:
Closed to new hires
2020 Valuation

Bridged Benefit: 2.00%
Multiplier (no max)
Frozen FAC,; to 1.50%
Multiplier (no max)

6/30/2013

60

10 years

50/25

55/15

3 years

2.50% (Non-Compound)
2.50% (Non-Compound)
5%

7/1/2013

No
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10 - Water Treatment
Closed to new hires
2020 Valuation

Bridged Benefit: 2.00%
Multiplier (no max)
Frozen FAC; to 1.50%
Multiplier (no max)

6/30/2013
60

10 years
50/25
55/15

3 years
2.50% (Non-Compound)
n/a

5%
7/1/2013
No

20 - Police Chief:
Open division
2020 Valuation

Bridged Benefit: 2.00%
Multiplier (no max)
Frozen FAC; to 1.50%
Multiplier (no max)

7/31/2014
60

10 years
50/25
55/15

3 years
2.50% (Non-Compound)
n/a

5%

n/a

No
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Notes to Financial Statements
Yoar Ended . ume 30 2071

Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)
rms
At the December 31, 2020 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 13

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 6

Active employees 2

Total employees covered by MERS 21
Contributions

The City is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as
established by the MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. All full time employees contribute 5% of their salary
to the plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City’s average contribution rate was 52.9 percent of annual
payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by the City and by
the MERS Council of Trustees.

The employer’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an annual actuarial valuation as of
that date.

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020 annual actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 2.5%
Salary Increases: 3% plus merit and longevity: 3% in the long term
Investment rate of return: 7.35%, net of investment and administrative expense including inflation

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.0% long-term wage
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of 3%-4%.

Mortality rates used were based on the Pub-2010 and fully generational MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial
experience study of 2014-2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method
in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized
in the following table:
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(Continued)

Target Long-Term Long-Term

Allocation Expected Expected

Target Gross Rate  Gross Rate Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return of Return of Return
Global Equity 60.00% 7.45% 4.47% 2.97%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 4.90% 0.98% 0.48%
Private Investments 20.00% 9.50% 1.90% 1.40%
100.00% 7.35% 4.85%

Discount Rate
e used to measure the total pension liability is 7.6%. The current discount rate shown for

GASB 68 purposes is higher than the MERS assumed rate of return. This is because, for GASB 68
pur di must be ] ministrative expenses, whereas for funding purposes, it is
net str ses. The e of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes
that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the
actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary =~ Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Liability Liability Net Position Liability

Balances at 12/31/19 $5,075,106 $2,156,159 $2,918,947
Service cost 9,327 0 9,327
Interest on total pension liability 371,016 0 371,016
Difference between expected and actual experience 34,747 0 34,747
Changes in assumptions 124,002 0 124,002
Employer contributions 0 240,840 (240,840)
Employee contributions 0 5,178 (5,178)
Net investment income 0 256,025 (256,025)
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (395,956) (395,956) 0
Administrative expense 0 4,197) 4,197
Net changes 143 136 101.890 41,246
Balances as of 12/31/20 $5,218,242 $2,258,049 193

Of the total net pension liability of $2,960,193 at 12/31/20, $1,776,116 has been allocated to
governmental activities and $1,184,077 has been allocated to the Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund.
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(Continued)
The following presents the Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of

7.6%, as well as what the employer’s Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (6.6%) or 1% higher (8.6%) than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.6%) 6% (8.6%)
Net pension liability of the City $2,960,193 $2,516,114

Note: The current discount rate shown for GASB 68 purposes is higher than the MERS assumed rate of
return. This is because, for GASB 68 purposes, the discount rate must be gross of administrative
expenses, whereas for funding purposes, it is net of administrative expenses.

Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $352,059. At June 30, 2021,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of (Inflows) of
Resources Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
plan investments earnings $0 ($66,831)
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent
to the measurement date 128.880 0
$128.880 ($66,831)

Of the total net deferred outflows of resources, $77,328 has been allocated to governmental activities and
$51,552 has been allocated to the Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund. Of the total net deferred inflows
of resources, $40,099 has been allocated to governmental activities and $26,732 has been allocated to the
Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund.

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability for the year ending June
30, 2022.
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Note 14

Note 15

Note 16

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Ended .June 30. 21

(Concluded)
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows.

Year ended June 30, Amount
2022 ($13,340)
2023 9,583
2024 (43,535)
2025 (19.539)
D

The City has a defined contribution retirement plan, which is offered through the Municipal Employees
Retirement System of Michigan (MERS), administered by the State of Michigan. Five employees
participate in the defined contribution pension plan. Contributions are 100% vested immediately.
Employees contribute 5.0% of their wages to the plan. ~ The city does not make contributions towards
this plan.

The City of Luna Pier is subject to the Michigan Employment Security Act and would be liable for valid
unemployment claims on a reimbursement basis. No provision has been made for this potential liability.

On March 11, 1988, the City of Luna Pier signed a contract with LaSalle Township which specified that
the City of Luna Pier will provide the capacity for treatment of the Township’s wastewater at the City of
Luna Pier Wastewater Treatment Plant. The City of Luna Pier is responsible for the operation and
maintenance of the system. The billing to LaSalle Township for LaSalle Township customers is based on
actual usage at a rate equal to the City’s customers.

The City provides retiree healthcare benefits to eligible employees upon retirement. Depending on hire
date, employees either participate in the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan’s
Retiree Health Funding Vehicle (defined benefit OPEB plan) or Health Care Savings Program (defined
contribution OPEB plan). MERS pools assets of the participating employers for investing purposes, but
maintains separate accounts for each individual employer in the Retiree Health Funding Vehicle and each
individual employee in the Health Care Savings Program. MERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be
obtained by accessing the MERS website at www.mersofmich.com.
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(Continued)

The MERS Retirement Health Funding Vehicle plan became operational in the fall of 2004 and was
made available to all municipalities in Michigan. Participating municipalities can contribute monies
to the Trust as desired and no contribution method is imposed. These funds constitute a health care
fund, which enables municipalities to accumulate monies to provide or subsidize health care benefits
and beneficiaries as defined by IRS Code Section 213. The Plan accounts are invested in the MERS
portfolio choices and earnings are tax exempt as a result of the MERS Private Letter Ruling. The
benefits are provided through a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. All investments are held
by MERS.

Contributions

The City has no obligation to make contributions in advance of when the insurance premiums or
benefits are due for payment; in other words, the plan may be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.
Administrative costs of the Plan are paid for by the City. Plan participants are not required to
contribute to the Plan.

Benefits Provided

spouses may elect coverage under the City’s health program for current active
employees. Certain retirees have grandfathered benefit plans. The City pays a range of percentages
for medical, dental, and optical coverage for retirees, and in certain instances, contributions toward
spousal coverage, a portion of the coverage cost, depending on the retiree’s hire date, years of service,
and union affiliation, as applicable. Retirees must be at least 50 when separating from active
employment and receiving pension benefits to be eligible. Retirees may elect for additional coverage
at their cost. Retirees electing to opt out of the health care plan are eligible to a stipend for coverage
under another plan. City employees hired on or after January 1, 2012 are not eligible to receive
coverage under this plan.

t Terms
At June 30, 2021, plan membership consisted of the following:

Retired participants 7
Active participants 4
Total employees 11

The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

47



Note 16

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended 30 2021

(Continued)
(Continued)
(Concluded)
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 0%
Projected salary increases 2.0%
Average retirement age 60
Healthcare cost trend rates 4.9% for 2021, varying between 4.3%
and 4.9% through 2030
NOL and ADC Calculated using the Alternative

Measurement Method in accordance
with GASB methodology

Mortality Table Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans
Mortality Tables, with mortality
improvement projected for 10 years

Turnover Assumption Derived from data maintained by the
U.S. Office of Personnel
Management regarding the most
recent experience of the employee
group covered by the Federal
Employees Retirement System

The long term expected rate of return on the OPEB plan investments was determined using a forward
looking estimate of capital market returns model for each investment major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and
investment expenses. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Long-Term

Allocation Expected Expected

Target Gross Rate  Gross Rate Inflation Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return of Return  Assumption  of Return
Global Equity 60.00% 7.45% 4.47% 2.50% 2.97%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 4.90% 0.98% 2.50% 0.48%
Private Investments 20.00% 9.50% 1.90% 2.50% 1.40%
100.00% 7.35% 4.85%
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(Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021, was 2.66%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that City contributions will be
made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates. Based on these
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total OPEB liability.

The components of the changes in the net OPEB liability are summarized as follows

Increase (Decrease)

Plan
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Changes in Net OPEB Liability Liability Net Position

Balances at June 30, 2020 $250,733 $0 $250,733
Service cost 288 0 288
Interest on total pension liability 7,153 0 7,153
Changes in benefits 0 0 0
Difference between expected and actual experience (160,416) 0 (160,416)
Changes in assumptions 2,130 0 2,130
Employer contributions 0 25,331 (25,331)
Employee contributions 0 0 0
Net investment income 0 0 0
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (25,331) (25,331) 0
Administrative expense ‘ 0 0 0
Net changes (176,176) 0 (176,176)
Balances at June 30, 2021 $74.557 $0 $74,557

Of the total net OPEB liability of $74,557 at June 30, 2021, $44,734 has been allocated to
governmental activities and $29,823 has been allocated to the Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund.

s in the Discount Rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 2.66%,
as well as what the City’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1.0% lower (1.66%) or 1.0% higher (3.66%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.66% (2.66%) (3 66%)
Net OPEB liability of the City $81.406 $74,557 $68,551
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(Concluded)

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s net OPEB

liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1.0% lower (2.0%)
and 1.0% higher (4.0%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Current Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
(1.66%) 66% .66%
Net OPEB liability of the City $67.452 $74,557 $82,605

The City’s defined contribution OPEB plan (Health Care Savings Program) provides certain health
care benefits to plan members upon termination of employment. The City participates in the
Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent, multiple
employer, statewide public employee defined benefit contribution OPEB plan established by the
Michigan Legislature under Public Act 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine member Retirement
Board. Public Act 427 of 1984, as amended, establishes and amends the benefit provisions of the
participants in MERS. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by accessing the
MERS website at www.mersofmich.com.

Contributions

The City contributes 2.0% of employee wages according to plan provisions. Employees do not make
contributions toward this plan. Contribution rates are determined by the City and may be amended by
the local governing body.

Benefit Terms
Employees become vested on the employer contributions after completing 90 days of creditable
service to the employer, according to plan provisions.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no contributions to the plan

Forfeiture Amounts

Non-vested employer contributions are forfeited after a period of 5 years has passed from the date of
termination. Such forfeitures are used to cover future employer contributions, be directed to the
employer’s Retiree Health Funding Vehicle, or be equally distributed among all remaining active
participants in the plan. There were no forfeitures for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors, omissions and employee
injuries (workman’s compensation). The City has purchased commercial insurance for property loss, torts,
errors, omissions, and employee injuries.

Joint Venture

nty Water System is a joint venture with the County of Monroe and four municipalities:
LaSalle Township, Bedford Township, Erie Township, and the City of Luna Pier. However, the
municipalities do not have an equity interest in this joint venture. The City of Luna Pier and the other three
municipalities entered into another contract with the County of Monroe whereby each municipality has
pledged their full faith and credit to provide debt service payments on the $2,610,000 bond issue dated
August 11, 2016. The bond proceeds were used to acquire and rove s to th th County
Water System and refund $2,535,000 of the 2005 bond issue 1,2 Each cipality is
obligated for their share of the obligation based on the assessed property valuations which are computed
annually. Currently, the South County Water System provides the debt retirement requirements on the
$2,610,000 bond issue which are paid from the system’s revenues.

As of June 30, 2021, the City of Luna Pier’s obligation for this bond issue is 2.8590%. The following is the
financial information of the joint venture, obtained from the Monroe County Drain Commissioner, County
Agency financial report as of December 31, 2020:

Total assets $31,955,431
Total deferred outflows 581,920
Total liabilities 4,277,968
Total deferred inflows 475,122
Total net position 27,784,261
Total revenues 9,971,341
Total expenses 8,801,584
Total increase in net position 1,169,757
Current portion of long-term debt 290,000
Long-term debt (net of discounts) 1,225,000

Substantially all of the City’s facilities are subject to federal, state, and local provisions regulating the
discharge of material into the environment. Compliance with these provisions has not had, nor does the
City expect such compliance to have, any material effect upon the capital expenditures, net revenue in
excess of expenditures or financial condition of the City. Management believes that the current practices
and procedures for the control and disposition of such wastes comply with applicable federal and state
requirements.
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e 30, 2021, the City implemented the following pronouncement: GASB
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. As a result, a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of
changes in fiduciary net position have been presented. The statement of fiduciary net position reports all
assets, liabilities, and net position of fiduciary funds, as in the past. However, liabilities are now only
recognized when an event occurs that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. The
statement of changes in fiduciary net position reports the additions and deductions from fiduciary net
position, which is a new requirement for custodial funds, which replace agency funds.

The City’s management evaluated subsequent events from June 30, 2021 through December 14, 2021, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. In March 2020, the World Health Organization
declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a pandemic, which continues to spread
throughout the United States. While the ultimate impact and duration of this outbreak is uncertain, the City
anticipates a negative impact on net assets, operations, and cash flows. Possible effects include, but are not
limited to, decreases in property taxes, state shared revenue, state grants, charges for services, and other
revenue. However, the financial impact of such decreases cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes:
Property taxes $431,193 $431,193 $431,646 $453
Payment in lieu of taxes 2,000 2,000 1,457 (543)
Tax administration fee 17,925 17,925 17,075 (850)
Penalties and interest 1,500 1,500 3,557 2,057
452,618 452,618 453,735 1,117
Licenses and permits:
Business 27,950 27,950 22,985 (4,965)
Building permits 10,000 10,000 19,621 9,621
Plan review fee 2,000 2,000 6,068 4,068
Plumbing permits 1,000 1,000 2,433 1,433
Parking and launching permits 3,200 3,200 7,175 3,975
Parking - Pay and Display 31,600 31,600 87,244 55,644
Electrical permits 3,000 3,000 4,684 1,684
Mechanical permits 2,500 2,500 3,600 1,100
81,250 81,250 153,810 72,560
Federal grant:
Grant Revenue 0 6,235 47,231 40,996
State grants:
State shared revenue 186,434 186,434 151,275 (35,159)
Local community stabilization 0 0 21,060 21,060
Liquor license fees 1,100 1,100 1,167 67
187,534 187,534 173,502 (14,032)
Local grants:
Other 0 0 7,936 7,936
Charges for services:
Bed tax 1,500 1,500 1,226 274)
Fringe benefit recovery 2,000 2,000 3,505 1,505
3,500 3,500 4,731 1,231
Fines and forfeits 3,000 3,000 3,606 606
Interest income 2,000 2,000 2,901 901
Rentals:
Equipment rental 25,000 25,000 31,496 6,496
Building rental 8,000 8,000 4,940 (3,060)
Police range rental 150 150 510 360
AT&T tower land lease 21,650 21,650 21,600 (50)
54,800 54,800 58,546 3,746
Other revenue:
Donations 0 0 13,320 13,320
Sale of property 0 0 9,320 9,320
Other revenue 15,500 5,500 4,205 (11,295)
15,500 15,500 26,845 11,345
Total Revenues 800,202 806,437 932,843 85,410
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30 2021

Budgeted Amounts

Original
Expenditures

Legislative:

Council $8,087

General government:

Mayor 3,875
Election 5,155
Finance 10,500
Assessor 19,625
Attorney 15,000
Clerk 61,846
Board of review 500
Treasurer 54,463
City hall and grounds 20,600

191,564

Public safety:

Police department 36,932
Fire department 47,247
Building inspection 35,287

119,466

Public works:

Public works 62,266
Drains 47,591
Streetlights 25 15

Community and economic development:

Economic development 0

Recreation and cultural

Recreation 109,622
Water tower park 9,805
Library 4,275

123,702

Debt service 66,979

Other:

Insurance and bonds 30,000

Hospital and dental insurance 30,000

Pension 254,568

Social security 60
314,628

Total Expenditures 959,498

Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues Over Expenditures (159,296)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfer out (40,000)
Net Change in Fund Balances (199,296)
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 1,149,779
Fund Balances - End of year $950,483
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Final

$8,087

3,875
8,455
10,500
19,625
15,000
61,886
500
54,463
46,100
220,404

51,759
120,080
35,287
207,126

62,266
49,207
28,216
139,689

47,231

109,622
9,805
4,275

123,702

69,497
30,000
30,000
254,568

60
314,628

1,130,364

(323,927)

(66,796)

(390,723)
1,127,112

$736,389

Actual

$7.,870

3,391
10,701
4,000
16,669
5,725
50,908
450
49,916
38,741
180,501

47,696
54,532
31,001
133,229

49,384
49,206
28216

127,306

46,877

27,496
17,847

2,942
48,285

71,178
23,968
15,344
249,660

0
288,972

904,218

28,625

(70,796)

(42,171)
1,109,518

$1,067,347

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative

$217

484
(2,246)
6,500
2,956
9,275
10,978
50
4,547
7,359
39,903

4,063
65,548
4,286
73,897

12,382
1
0
12,383
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82,126
(8,042)
1,333
75417
(1,681)
6,032
14,656
4,908

60
25,656

226,146

311,556

(4,000)

307,556
(17,594)

$289,962



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Major Street Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
State grants:
Gas and weight tax $108,100 $108,100 $123,910 $15,810
Other state grant 200 200 75 (125)
Interest income 0 0 156 156
Other revenue 3,000 3,000 0 (3,000)
Total Revenues 111,300 111,300 124,141 15,841
Expenditures
Public works:
Preservation 7,000 7,000 3,620 3,380
Routine maintenance 25,000 25,000 23,057 1,943
Traffic services 4,100 4,100 0 4,100
Winter maintenance 7,750 7,750 0 7,750
Administrative and engineering 27,447 27,447 3,095 24,352
71,297 71,297 29,772 41,525
Debt service:
Principal 24,708 24,708 24,708 0
Interest 9,494 9,494 9,494 0
34,202 34,202 34,202 0
Total Expenditures 105,499 10 499 63,974 41,525
Net Change in Fund Balances 5,801 5,801 60,167 57,366
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 224,848 214,664 214,664 0
Fund Balances - End of year $230,649 $220,465 $274.831 $54.,366
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Local Street Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget
Amounts Positive
Actual (Negative)
Revenues
State grants:
Gas and weight tax $52,500 $52,500 $64,901 $12,401
Other state grant 500 500 1,253 753
Interest 0 0 131 131
Total Revenues 53,000 53,000 66,285 13,154
Expenditures
Public works:
Preservation 10,000 10,000 5,589 4,411
Routine maintenance 22,600 22,600 26,250 (3,650)
Traffic services 2,550 2,550 0 2,550
Winter maintenance 6,650 6,650 0 6,650
Administrative and engineering 10,818 10,818 3,580 7,238
Total Expenditures 52,618 52,618 35,419 17,199
Net Change in Fund Balances 382 382 30,866 30,353
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 213,923 205,856 205,856 0
Fund Balances - End of year $214.305 $206,238 $236.722 $30,484
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CITY OF LUNA PIER

Police Millage Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Final
Revenues

Property taxes $88,039 $88,039

Federal grants 0 4,000

State grants 0 0

Donation 3750

Total Revenue 95,789
Expenditures
Public safety:
Police department 142,598 193,978
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures (50,809) (98,189)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfer in 40,000 40,000
Net Change in Fund Balances (10,809) (58,189)
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 10,206 2,420
Fund Balances - End of year ($603) ($55,769)
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Actual

$88,092
10,696
1,914

0

100,702

165 608

(64,906)

70,796
5,890
2,420

$8,310

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive

(Negative)

$53

6,696

1,914
(3,750)

4,913

28,370

33,283

30,796
64,079

0

$64,079



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Garbage and Rubbish Collection Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues
Special assessments

Expenditures
Public works:
Refuse collection
Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of year

Fund Balances - End of year

Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
$67,850 $67,850
68,735 68,735
(885) (885)
19,697 8,651
$18,812 $7,766
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Actual

$67,850

58,580
9,270
8,651

517,921

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$0

10,155
10,155
0

$10,155



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Downtown Development Authority Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Amounts
Revenues
Property tax $0 $0
Other revenue:
Sponsorships 0 0
Total Revenues 0 0
Expenditures
Community and economic development:
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,000) (1,000)
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 451 451
Fund Balances - End of year ($549) (8549)
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Actual

$341
250

591

0
591

451
$1,042

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$341

250

591

1,000

1,591

$1,591



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Community Development Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
Revenues
Interest income $0 $0
Expenditures
Community and economic development:
Professional fees 7,155 7,500
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000
Total Expenditures 9,155 9,500
Net Change in Fund Balances (9,155) (9,500)
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 56,182 56,182
Fund Balances - End of year $47,027 $46,682
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Actual

$0

2,000
3,020

5,020
(5,020)

56,182
$51,162

Variance with
Final Budget
Posttive
(Negative)

$0

5,500
(1,020)

4,480
4,480

0
$4,480



Revenues
Taxes:

Property
Penalties and interest

State grants
Interest income
Total revenues
Expenditures
Public works:
Dike maintenance
Pump stations utilities
Emergency maintenance
Miscellaneous
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of year

Fund Balances - End of year

CITY OF LUNA PIER

Flood Control Facilities Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
$21,931 $21,931
2,000 2,000
23,931 23,931
0 0
0 0
23,931 23,931
20,000 30,950
4,500 4,500
0 0
1,000 1,000
25,500 36,450
(1,569) (12,519)
200,905 21 10
$199,336 $201,891
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Actual

$21,939
69
22,008

1,206
1,890

25,104

30,950

3,163

0

1,183

35,296
(10,192)

214,410

$204.218

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive

$8
1,931

1,206
1,890

1,173

1,337
183
154

2,327

0

$2,327



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Fire Millage Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in F und Balances
Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Interest income $3,750 $3,750 $0 ($3,750)
Expenditures
Public safety:
Fire department 0 0 0 0
Net Changes in Fund Balances 3,750 3,750 0 (3,750)
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 52 52 52 0
Fund Balances - End of year $3,802 $3,802 $52 ($3,750)
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



CITY OF LUNA PIER

Waste Water Treatment Plant Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2021

Operating Revenues
Charges for services:
Sewer use charge - Luna Pier
Sewer use charge - LaSalle Township

Other revenue
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Sewer processing and maintenance:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Workers compensation
Pension
Hospitalization insurance and other post-employment benefits
Insurance
Supplies and chemicals
Contracted services
Utilities and telephone
Maintenance
Schooling
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Administration:
Salaries
Professional fees

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Grant proceeds
Interest
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of year

Net Position - End of year

66

2021

$472,117
112,066
584,183
4,197

588,380

105,764
9,463
2,592

45,568

(50,388)

9,558
28,519
23,352
38,267

3,615

0

4,765

200,609

421,684

21,529
2,038
23,567

445,251
143,129

309,066
(86,680)
222,386

365,515
823,449
$1,188,964



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Luna Pier
Monroe County, Michigan

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Luna Pier as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiency in the City’s
internal control to be a material weakness:

Financial Statements

The City does not have procedures in place to prepare financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, including procedures to record accruals for revenues and
expenditures, to track changes in capital assets, and to present required financial statement disclosures. As is the case
with many smaller and medium-sized entities, the government has historically relied on independent external auditors
to assist in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements and footnotes. As a result of this condition,
the government lacks internal controls over the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
following deficiencies in the City’s internal control to be significant deficiencies:

One of the important parts of the system of checks and balances between the Clerk and the Treasurer is the comparing
of the month-end cash balances. During the audit, we noted several bank accounts that were not reconciled with the
general ledger. We recommend that after the Treasurer reconciles the monthly bank statements, the Clerk and
Treasurer compare the results with the cash balances of the general ledger and reconcile any differences.



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Luna Pier

7

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, others within the
City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We appreciate the cooperation and courtesy extended to us by the officials and employees of the City during the audit
engagement. We are encouraged by the City’s efforts to improve and maintain a sound internal accounting control
system and by the efficiency of those people involved. It is our pleasure to have been of service to the City of Luna

Pier.

Very truly yours,

%MM%&M

December 14, 2021



December 14, 2021

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Luna Pier
Monroe County, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Luna Pier for the year ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and if
applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated January 16,
2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies
used by the City of Luna Pier are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the
City implemented GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities and GASB No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including
Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. We noted no transactions entered into by the City of Luna Pier during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the allowance of doubtful accounts is based on the sewer use charges. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop an estimate of a zero percent for the allowance
for doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the length of time those
assets will provide economic benefit in the future.

Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on formulas and conditions
specified in various contracts regarding vacation and sick leave benefits.

Management’s valuation of pension and other post-retirement benefits is based on formulas and
assumptions about the probability of the occurrence of events far into the future.



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Luna Pier
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The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all
such misstatements, some of which were material to the financial statements.

Disagreements with Management

For es of this letter, a ment with gement is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whe not resolved to our on, that co significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We
are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter
dated December 14, 2021.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the
City of Luna Pier’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant
has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management each year prior to retention as the City of Luna Pier’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the major fund budget and actual statements and required pension and OPEB
schedules, which are required supplementary information (RSI) , which supplements the basic financial statements. Our
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Luna Pier
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We were engaged to report on the Waste Water Treatment Plant Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund
Net Position, which accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information
accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, ,the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the City Council and management of the City of Luna Pier and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

&%MM\tW





